








From: Kristina Gentile

To: Mavis Torres; Konecsni, Annette SMB
Subject: RE: BOR Records - 2017-28122 (Appendix B) - 5 Day Submission
Date: Monday, January 15, 2018 11:08:18 AM

Good Morning Annette,

| have searched through the documents we received from Altus for their 5 day submission for lead
appeal 28122 and there doesn’t appear to be an appendix B anywhere. | also checked with
Assessment to see if they received anything and they also didn’t receive an appendix B in the 5 day
submission from Altus either.

Thank you,
Kristina

From: Mavis Torres

Sent: January-12-18 4:03 PM

To: Konecsni, Annette SMB <akonecsni@smb.gov.sk.ca>; Kristina Gentile <KGENTILE@regina.ca>
Subject: BOR Records - 2017-28122 (Appendix B) - 5 Day Submission

Hi Annette — As per our conversation this afternoon, | have searched our files for the missing
‘Appendix B" — | cannot find it in our files either. I'm not sure if this information was actually
provided to the Board.

I will have to work with Kristina on this (she is back in the office on Monday), she might be able to
find it, or confirm it was missing.

Thanks.

Mavis Torres
Council Officer
Office of the City Clerk

P:306.777.7943
F:306.777.6809
E: mtorres@regina.ca

Regina.ca

DISCLAIMER: The information transmitted is intended only for the addressee and may
contain confidential, proprietary and/or privileged material. Any unauthorized review,
distribution or other use of or the taking of any action in reliance upon this information is
prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete or destroy this
message and any copies.
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Industrial Warehouse Page | 8

product distribution. They can be constructed of different materials such as wood, concrete, or
metal, and can be single or multiple tenant. Special Purpose properties are not included in the
industrial inventory, as they are custom built improvements for particular uses that rarely
trade.

Direct Comparison Approach

For this property group, the assessment is determined using the direct comparison approach. Itis the
most appropriate method of valuation for Industrial Warehouse properties in the City of Edmonton as
it mirrors the actions of buyers and sellers in the market place. There is sufficient sale data to derive
reliable market estimates.

The majority of Industrial Warehouse properties are owner occupied with only a portion of the
inventory traded based on the property’s ability to generate income.

Support for the Direct Comparison approach comes from several reputable sources, for example:

Thix approach is usually the preferred approach for estimating values for
residential and other property types with adequate sales. (IAAO, 2013, sec.
4.3).

The Direct Camparison approach provides the most credible indication of
value for owner-occupied commercial and industrial properties, i.c.,
properties that are not purchased primarily for their income-producing
characteristics. These types of properties are amenable to direct comparison
because similar properties are commonly bought and sold in the same marker.
(Appraisal Institute of Canada [AIC], 2010, p. 13.4).

Sales

The City of Edmonton validates all land title transactions (sales). The validation process includes site
inspections, interviews with parties involved, a review of land title documents, corporate searches,
third party information, and sale validation questionnaires.

The City of Edmonton used 321 sales occurring from January 1, 2011 to June 30, 2016 for 2017
valuation. Time adjustments are applied to sale prices to account for any market fluctuations based
on the time trend occurring between the sale date and the legislated valuation date. Through the
review of sales, the collective actions of buyers and sellers in the market place are analyzed to
determine the contributory value of specific property characteristics that drive market value. Once
these values have been determined through the mass appraisal process, they are applied to the
inventory to derive the most probable selling price. Value estimates were calculated using multiple
regression analysis, which replicates the forces of supply and demand in the market place.

See the appendix for a time adjustment chart.

Sale price reflects the condition of a property on the sale date and may not be equal to
the assessment.
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Main Floor Area is based on the exterior measurements of the building. Economies of scale
dictate that larger buildings trade for a lower unit of comparison than smaller buildings.

Industrial Group Location: Industrial Warehouse Study Areas are geographic areas defined
using location boundaries and property characteristics. See enclosed maps entitled Industrial Study
Areas. In sequence of desirability, the study areas are as follows:

Industrial Group 12 - Major Roadways South
Industrial Group 18 - Core South

Industrial Group 2 - Major Roads Northwest
Industrial Group 20 - Partially Serviced
Industrial Group 17 - Core Northwest
Industriat Group 39 - Northeast

Industrial Group 45 - Yellowhead Corridor East
industrial Group 28 - Queen Mary Park
Industrial Group 22 - Un-serviced

Site Coverage (total main floor area of the account + lot size): the relationship between main
floor area of buildings not valued using the cost approach and entire size of the parcel. Itis expressed
as a percentage.

Typical site coverage is approximately 30%. Lower site coverage indicates that the given property has
more land which increases the property’s market desirability. Reasons for the increased desirability
include potential future expansion of the improvements or subdivision of the parcel and improved
storage capacity. By contrast, high site coverage properties have relatively less land which results in
limited development potential and adversely affects functionality and access.

It is not uncommon for industrial accounts valued on the Direct Comparison approach to have an
additional building on the property valued on the Cost approach. A building that the city has deemed
a cost building is lower quality than the main building and would have a lower assessment per square
foat than the main building. These are referred to as “Cost Buildings” and are valued using the
Marshall & Swift Manual, which applies the depreciated replacement cost new.

Cost buildings can be temporary structures such as arch rib fabric buildings, re-locatable office trailers,
unheated sheds and storage buildings. These structures can also lack heating, electricity or flooring.

Area of the Cost Buildings is excluded from the site coverage calculation.

Effective Age (also known as Effective Year Built): is represented by the overall utility and

condition of the assessed property. Maintenance of a property can influence the effective age of the
building. If a building has an addition or receives superior maintenance than other properties in the
market place, then the effective age will be less than the actual or chronological age.
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Access - The ability to enter a property from an existing road or highway and to maneuver within
the property.

Contamination - significant contamination is treated on a site specific basis, as per the City’s
Contamination Policy.

Easement — is a non-possessory right to use and/or enter onto the real property of another

without possessing It. It is “best typified In the right of way which one landowner, A, may enjoy over
the land of another, 8”.

Reconciling Value Indications
There are two types of technigues for reconciliation: quantitative and qualitative.

Quantitative Adjustments
A quantitative adjustment can be measured or quantified by a mathematical expression.

Several techniques are available to quantify adjustments to the sale prices of
comparable properties: data analysis techniques (including poired data
analysis, grouped data analysis, and secondary data analysis, statistical
onolysis, graphic analysis  (AIC, 2005, p. 18.8).

In the direct comparison approach, the best comparables are those sales that
require the least absolute adjustment. (AIC, 1995, p. 245).

Due to the legislative requirement to use mass appraisal, the City has used statistical analysis to
determine annual assessments, This means that specific adjustments for different factors
affecting value are not quantifiable. In the absence of quantitative adjustments, an alternative
technique is qualitative analysis.

Qualitative Analysis

Qualitative analysis Is easlly applied by ranking comparables from best to worst and placing the
subject within that ranking to determine an upper and lower limit.

When a sale property is considered to offer important market evidence but
finding the means to make quantitative adjustments is lacking, the appraiser
may turn to other major direct comparison techniques, qualitative analysis.
(AIC, 2005, p. 19.10).

Qualitative anolysis recognizes  the difficulty in expressing odfustments
with mathematical precision. (AIC, 2005, p. 19.12 ).

reliable results con usually be obtained by bracketing the subject between
comparables that are superior and inferior to it. {AIC, 2005, p. 19.13).
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If one or two comparable properties require fewer total adjustments than the
other comparables, an appraiser may attribute greater accuracy and give
more weight to the value indications obtained from these comparables,
particularly if the magnitude of the adjustments is approximately the same.
(AIC, 2005, p. 18.15).

General Practices

The most common unit of comparison for industrial properties is value per
square foot of building area,

Averages: As no two industrial properties are identical, averages can become misleading;
however, where differences are minor averages can be useful. Numerous sales must be
considered and appropriately weighted to arrive at a reasonable estimate of value. According
to mass appraisal theory,

Appralsers should rely on several sold properties as comparable sales. Three

to five comparables are usually adequate, but o larger number improves

confidence in the final estimate, increases the awareness of patterns of value,

and stabilizes assessments over time. {UBC, 2009, p. 7.2).

Onus: Proving the incorrectness of an assessment is the responsibility of the individual alleging
it. This individual must provide sufficiently compelling evidence on which a change to the
assessment can be based.

Post Facto Sales: A sale which occurs after the valuation date of July 1, 2016 may be considered
for market trending only. Accordingly, the City of Edmonton does not use post facto sales for
modeling.

Provincial Quality Standards

For Industrial Warehouse properties the City of Edmonton used the direct comparison approach to
calculate the 2017 assessments. The assessment models, the process utilized, and the results are
submitted annually to the Assessment Services Branch of the Department of Municipal Affairs for
audit purpases. This audit Is used to determine the accuracy of our predictions relative to the market
place, and is a direct reflection on the accuracy of our models. The results indicated that our
assessments meet Provincial Quality Standards as set out in MRAT.

Properties are assessed using an Industrial Warehouse model that adjusts for characteristics which
impact market value, in order to arrive at a typical market value for properties in this class. Each year
a new model is created using any new sales from the current year and sales used in the previous
model. Each year the decision is made whether or not to include the oldest sales, based on the
number of sales available, indicated time adjustments and valuation judgment.

The resulting assessments were tested both internally and at the Provincial level. The 2017 Industrial
Warehouse model met Provincial Quality Standards as set out in MRAT.
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International Association of Assessing Officers [JAAQ]. (1997). Glossary for Property Appraisal and
Assessment. Chicago IL.

Province of Alberta. {2012). Matters Relating to Assessment and Taxation Regulation. Retrieved from
Service Alberta, Queen's Printer: http://www.qp.alberta.ca

Province of Alberta. (2015). Municipal Government Act. Edmonton, AB: Queen's Printer.
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Mavi orres

R |
From: Mavis Torres
Sent: Wednesday, May 10, 2017 5:04 PM
To: 'Archie Fieldgate'
Cc: Deana Puff; Ryan Simpson
Subject: RE:

Noted — | will process your request.

Mavis

From: Archie Fieldgate [mailto:archie.fieldgate@altusgroup.com]

Sent: Wednesday, May 10, 2017 2:42 PV

To: Mavis Torres <MTORRES@regina.ca>

Cc: Deana Puff <deana.puff@aitusgroup.com>; Ryan Simpson <ryan.simpson@altusgroup.com:>
Subject:

Hi Mavis:

Pursuant to Section 208 of the Cities Act, Altus would request that the Hearings of May 15/16/17 be recorded.
Regards,

Archie

Archie Fieldgate
Senior Consultant, Property Tax, Altus Group Limited

D: 306.359.0672 T:306.359.0671 ext 1990 M:306.539.2368 T: 306.359.0674
311 Albert Street, Regina, Saskatchewan, 54R 2Né Canada

Altus Group is a leading provider of independent commercial real estate consulting and advisory services, software and
data sclutions worldwide.

Altus Group

If you wish to unsubscribe from recefving commercial electronic messages from Altus Group, please click here or go to the fol{aowin ol of 1061
. . . age (0]
web address: http.//www.altusgroup.com/disclosures/anti-spam-policy ?

This message, and the documents attached hereto, are intended only for the addressee and may contain privileged or confidential
information. Any unauthorized disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you have recetved this message in error, please notify us
inmediately so that we may correct our internal records. Please then delete the original message. Thank you.




Kristina Gentile

From: Mavis Torres

Sent: November-21-17 1:09 PM
To: Kristina Gentile

Subject: FW: Date Confirmation

From: Bookings [mailto:bookings@royalreporting.com]
Sent: Wednesday, May 3, 2017 11:19 AM

To: Mavis Torres <MTORRES@regina.ca>

Subject: RE: Date Confirmation

Great! Thank you. | will update with that information.

Erunv MeNamwoirao

Administrative Assistant
Royal Reporting Services Ltd.
300-2010 11" Ave

Regina, SK S4P 0J3
306-352-3234

From: Mavis Torres [mailto:MTORRES@regina.ca]
Sent: Wednesday, May 03, 2017 11:15 AM

To: Bookings <bookings@royalreporting.com>
Subject: RE: Date Confirmation

My apologies — working with too many different dates. The bookings are for May 8, 15, 16, 17, 18, 23 & 24, 2017.

Mavis Torres
Council Officer
Office of the City Clerk

P:306.777.7943
F: 306.777.6809

E: mtorres@regina.ca

Regina.ca

From: Bookings [mailto:bookings@royalreporting.com]
Sent: Wednesday, May 03, 2017 11:09 AM

To: Mavis Torres <MTORRES@regina.ca>

Subject: Date Confirmation
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Good Morning,

| am just wanting to confirm the dates for the Board of Revision Hearings. | have here June 8, 15, 16, 17, 18, 23 and 24,
2017 as well as the same stated for May. Please let me know the dates for these hearings.

Thank you,

Evrin MeNawoiro

Administrative Assistant
Royal Reporting Services Ltd.
300-2010 11* Ave

Regina, SK S4P 0J3
306-352-3234

DISCLAIMER: The information transmitted is intended only for the addressee and may contain confidential,
proprietary and/or privileged material. Any unauthorized review, distribution or other use of or the taking of
any action in reliance upon this information is prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender
and delete or destroy this message and any copies.
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BOARD OF REVISION

DATE REQUESTED: May 10, 2017 DATE REQUIRED: May 15 & 16, 2017

REQUESTED BY: E-Mail BOARD ASSISTANT: Mavis Torres

This will confirm that Archie Fieldgate, Agent, Altus Group Limited, has requested a
court reporter be present for the hearing of the following appeals:

2017-28122 610 HENDERSON DRIVE REGINA SK S4N 5X3
2017-28125 680 MCLEAOD STREET REGINA SK S4N 4Y1
2017-28089 1735 FRANCIS STREET REGINA SK S4N 7N2
2017-28084 155 N LEONARD STREET REGINA SK S4N 5X5
2017-28108 402 MCDONALD STREET REGINA SK S4N 6E1
2017-28121 603 PARK STREET REGINA SK S4N &N1
2017-28124 651 HENDERSON DRIVE REGINA SK S4N 6A8
2017-28102 310 HENDERSON DRIVE REGINA SK S4N 5W7
2017-28086 1600 E ROSS AVENUE REGINA SK S4N 7A3
2017-2811% 580 PARK STREET REGINA SK S4N 5A9
2017-28123 615 N WINNIPEG STREET REGINA SK ***
2017-28127 855 PARK STREET REGINA SK 54N 5H4
2017-28111 455 PARK STREET REGINA SK S4N 582
2017-28087 1700 PARK STREET REGINA SK S4N 6B2
2017-28129 921 BROAD STREET REGINA SK 54R 8G%
2017-28126 745 PARK STREET REGINA SK 84N 4Y4
2017-28085 1575 ELLIOT STREET REGINA SK 54N 3G7
2017-28098 2201 18T AVENUE REGINA SK S4R 8G4
2017-28077 12202 EWING AVENUE REGINA SK
2017-28103 316 E 1ST AVENUE REGINA SK 84N 5H2
2017-28092 1964 PARK STREET REGINA SK S4P 3G4
2017-28083 1450 PARK STREET REGINA SK S4N 2G2
2017-28078 130 HODSMAN ROAD REGINA SK S4N 5X4
2017-28081 1400 1ST AVENUE REGINA SK S54R8G5
2017-28097 2133 1ST AVENUE REGINA SK S4R 8G4
2017-28114 515 13T AVENUE REGINA SK ***

2017-28116 555 HENDERSON DRIVE REGINA SK S4N 5X1
2017-28107 4000 E VICTORIA AVENUE REGINA SK ™**
2017-28101 250 HENDERSON DRIVE REGINA SK S4N 5P7
2017-28100 2216 E EMMETT HALL ROAD REGINA SK S4N 3M3 Page 994 of 1961
2017-28112 4600 E VICTORIA AVENUE REGINA SK ***
2017-28117 570 MCDONALD STREET REGINA SK S4N 4X2
2017-28110 4150 E VICTORIA AVENUE REGINA SK ***
2017-28090 1802 E STOCK ROAD REGINA 8K 84N 2G7
2017-28105 363 MAXWELL CRESCENT REGINA SK S4N 5X9
2017-28095 2107 E TURVEY ROAD REGINA SK S4N 3W1
2017-28071 100 MCDONALD STREET REGINA SK
2017-28079 1301 FLEURY STREET REGINA SK 54N 7N5
2017-28108 375 N LOGMAN CRESCENT REGINA S4N 6G3
2017-28118 580 HENDERSON DRIVE REGINA SK $4N 5X2
2017-28113 4750 E VICTORIA AVENUE REGINA SK ***
2017-28088 1715 ELLIOTT STREET REGINA SK ***
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REGINA BOARD OF REVISION

ORDER

Appeal: #2017 — 28122 (Lead Appeal)

(Year) {Appeai #)
Property Address: 610 Henderson Drive, et al.

Appellant: Altus Group Limited — on behalf of numerous appellants

Assessor: Gerry Krismer — Assistant City Assessor

The following order is hereby issued by the Regina Board of Revision concerning the
above-noted appeal.

Pursuant to Section 209(1) of The Cities Act, the Board hereby orders that Appendix “G” to the
Appellant’s 20 Day Submission are declared to be confidential.

The Board of Revision is authorized to issue orders related to an appeal hearing in accordance
with the following sections of The Cities Act:

Subsection 202(1) -  declaration of information to be confidential

Subsection 205(3) - summons a person to appear before the Board, to give evidence; and to
produce any documents

Subsection 207(3) - adjournment of a hearing

Subsection 209(1) - to amend the grounds in a notice of appeal

Date: Mav 16, 2017

Vs fotor

Joanne Moser,
Panel Chairperson

Walter Antonio,
Member

SR=I

Linda Paidel,
Member

Page 1000 of 1961

c: Appellant/Agent, Assessor, Members (3)



2017-0068 (Lead) to 2017-00115 Various c/o Altus Group Limited v City of Regina

In order to reduce the amount of duplication of material, the Hearing Transcript
for the Group B appeals has been carried forward from the Record Book for the
Group A appeals. Please refer to Record Book Volume 2 of 2 for Group A appeals
to view the Hearing Transcript.

10 pages were removed following this page as non-responsive to the request
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REGINA BOARD OF REVISION

APPEAL #2017-28122
Account ID: 10018730

In the matter of an appeal under Sections 197 and 198 of The Cities Act, S.S. 2002, c¢. C.-11.1, to

the City of Regina, Board of Revision by:

APPELLANT

ABCOMP HOLDINGS LTD
1755 DUGALD ROAD WINNIPEG MB R2J 0H3

respecting the assessment of:
610 HENDERSON DRIVE REGINA SK S4N 5X3

RESPONDENT

City of Regina

for the year 2017,

BEFORE
Joanne Moser, Panel Chair
Walter Antonio, Member

Linda Paidel, Member

Appeared for
the Appellant:

Archie Fieldgate, Altus Group Ltd.
Ryan Simpson, Altus Group Ltd.

Appeared for
the Respondent:

Gerry Krismer, City Assessor
Scott Miller, Manager, Assessment Research

This appeal was heard at City Hall, 2476 Victoria Avenue, Regina, Saskatchewan on

May 15 and 16, 2017.
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APPEAL # 2017-28122
Account ID: 10018730

PAGE 2

INTRODUCTION

This is an appeal of the assessment of a commercial property in the City of Regina. In this
decision, we refer to Mr. Ryan Simpson and Mr. Archie Fieldgate, Altus Group Limited, as the
“Appellants”, to Mr. Gerry Krismer and Mr. Scott Miller as the “Assessors” or the
“Respondents”, to the Board of Revision Panel as the “Board,” to The Cities Act as the “Act”, to
the Saskatchewan Assessment Manual as the “Manual”, to the Market Value Assessment in
Saskatchewan Handbook as the “Handbook™, and to the Saskatchewan Assessment Management
Agency's Cost Guide, as the "Guide".

PRELIMINARY MATTERS

There was no objection to the jurisdiction or composition of the Board.
A court reporter was present, transcribing the evidence for this appeal.

The Appellant and the Board agreed to recognize Scott Miller as an expert witness. The Assessor
stated his intention to introduce a second expert witnesses during the hearing. The Appellant
stated that he will also have an expert witness.

The Assessor took exception to what he contended were new grounds contained in the
Appellant's 5-day submission. The 5-day submission states: “The Assessor took exception to
what he contended were new grounds contained in the Appellant's 5-day submission. The 5-day
submission states: Increasing the size adjustment threshold above 50,000 square feet will
increase the maximum capitalization rate and therefore address the problem of an ASR above
1.00 by reducing the assessment value. The Board panel chair agreed with the Assessor that this
is an issue that did not appear in the Notice of Appeal and ruled that evidence for this issue will
not be heard.

The Appellant requested that Appendix B in the 5-day submission be treated as confidential. The
Assessor and Board agreed.

The Appellant and the Board agreed that Scott Miller is qualified as an expert witness in tax
assessment research and model development and statistical testing.

The Appellant and the Assessor agreed that Appeal 2017-28122 would be heard first, and that all

evidence and argument from this appeal would be carried forward to:

Appeal# Appeal Address Appeal# Appeal Address
2017-28125 680 MCLEOD STREET 2017-28126 745 PARK STREET
2017-28289 1735 FRANCIS STREET 2017-28085 1575 ELLIOT STREET
2017-28084 155 N LEONARD STREET 2017-28098 2201 15T AVENUE
2017-28108 402 MCDONALD STREET 2017-28077 12202 EWING AVENUE
2017-28121 603 PARK STREET 2017-28103 316 E 15T AVENUE
2017-28124 651 HENDERSON DRIVE 2017-28092 1964 PARK STREET
2017-28102 310 HENDERSON DRIVE 2017-28083 1450 PARK STREET
2017-28086 166 E ROSS AVENUE 2017-28078 130 HODSMAN ROAD
2017-28119 580 PARK STREET 2017-28081 1400 15T AVENUE
2017-28123 615 N WINNIPEG STREET 2017-28097 2133 15T AVENUE
2017-28127 855 PARK STREET 2017-28114 515 15T AVENUE
2017-28111 455 PARK STREET 2017-28116 555 HENDERSON DRIVE
2017-28087 1700 PARK STREET 2017-28107 4000 E VICTORIA AVENUE
2017-28129 921 BROAD STREET 2017-28101 250 HENDERSON DRIVE
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APPEAL # 2017-28122 PAGE 3
Account ID: 10018730

ISSUES

The Board identified the issues to be:

A) Did the Assessor err by applying a size adjustment to the base capitalization rate for
warehouses?

B) Has Equity been achieved?

C) Has the Market Valuation Standard been achieved?

FACTS

The property that is subject to the lead appeal in this series of appeals is owned by Abcomp
Holdings Ltd., which is the assessed owner of the property in the Ross Industrial area of the city
at 610 Henderson Drive.

The property is considered a non-regulated property pursuant to subsection 163.4 of the Act.

The total assessed value of the property is $6,163,100 for 2017. The primary use of the property
is Industrial and the assessed value was arrived at using the Income Approach to Value.

The application of the Income Approach to Value for the group of properties (which includes the
subject property) resulted in the development of the Industrial Model. Therefore, the Industrial
Model was applied to the subject property.

The primary building on the property is valued pursuant to the Market Valuation Standard. It is
an industrial manufacturing facility that was constructed in 1977.

The zoning of the subject property is 1B medium industrial which allows for 75 per cent site
coverage.

The subject property has a main floor area of 53,000 square feet and a lot size of 329,474 square
feet that results in site coverage of 16.1%. Because the subject property has a total of 74,000
square feet, it received an adjustment for size. The applied capitalization rate is 7.78740.

The base date is January 1, 2015.

RULES (Legislation, Requlations, Manuals, Handbooks and Guides)

Assessment in Saskatchewan is governed by legislation enacted by the provincial government.
The Assessor in Regina, being in a city, is bound by the Act. The Assessor must follow the
provisions of the Act, and the Regulations enacted pursuant to it. Legislation as well as the
Manual provides rules, formulas and other technical requirements for the Assessor to follow. The
Assessor can only use methods prescribed by legislation.
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APPEAL # 2017-28122 PAGE 4
Account ID: 10018730

Assessment is a technique applied on a large-scale called mass appraisal. The Saskatchewan
Court of Appeal describes the technique as follows:

The method of valuation remains mass appraisal, the process of valuing a group of
properties using standard methods and allowing for statistical testing. Individual appraisals
and actual market value of the property being assessed have no place in the process. (The
Cadillac Fairview Corporation Limited et al. v. The City of Saskatoon et al., 2000 SKCA
84, June 29, 2000, at paragraph 34.)

There is the over-riding principle of equity. The Act requires that all property be assessed as of
the applicable base date. Equity is achieved by following the procedure outlined by the Court of
Appeal for Saskatchewan, in precedent case law The Act, in subsection 165(3), provides that the
“dominant and controlling factor in the assessment of property is equity”. To achieve equity, the
Assessor must apply the directed method of assessment uniformly and fairly throughout the
assessment roll. The Assessor does have a degree of discretion, where appropriate, and the
Courts have instructed the Board to pay deference to that discretion, when appropriate. The
Saskatchewan Court of Appeal explains this issue in Estevan Coal Corporation v. Rural
Municipality of Estevan No. 5 et al., 2000 SKCA 82, June 29, 2000, at paragraphs 19 through 23.

The Board of Revision’s role is to review the assessment for error. If, on the evidence, the
Appellant cannot demonstrate an error in the assessment, the appeal must be dismissed.
However, if the Appellant demonstrates an error, then the Board has the power of correction.
When the Assessor has assessed a property and achieved equity as prescribed by legislation, the
Board is limited by the Act in altering the assessment by virtue of subsection 210(3), which
prevents the Board from altering the assessment if equity has been achieved with similar
properties in the city. The Board is also restricted from varying an assessment using single
property appraisal techniques.

The Board considers the following legal precedents to be relevant:

Sasco Developments Ltd. v. Moose Jaw (City), 2012 SKCA 24,
Agrevo Canada Inc. v. Regina (City), 2008 SKCA 129 (CANLII)
Various c/o Altus Group Limited v. Regina (City) (SMB 2011-0022 et al)

The Board considers the following manuals to be relevant:

Saskatchewan Assessment Manual

Saskatchewan Assessment Appraisers' Association Code of Ethics

Market Value Assessment in Saskatchewan Handbook

The 2015 Cost Guide

International Association of Assessing Officers Fundamentals of Mass Appraisal
Marshall Valuation service and Residential Cost Handbook

Canadian Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice

Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
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APPEAL # 2017-28122 PAGE 5
Account ID: 10018730

ANALYSIS AND CONCLUSIONS

In the Notice of Appeal the Appellant stated that the Assessor made several errors regarding the
assessment of 610 Henderson Drive. Specifically, an incorrect assessment methodology was
applied by the Assessor when capitalization rates for warehouses were adjusted based on the size
of the building.

The Appellant stated that the subject property was over-assessed because the base cap rate was
adjusted downward within the Assessor's calculations. This increased the assessment.

The Appellant attempted to show that the Assessor's size adjustment is not in keeping with the
principle of mass appraisal. On page 11 of their 20-day submission, the Appellant stated that by
deriving a size specific cap rate, the Assessor has moved away from Mass Appraisal. Thus, the
City of Regina had failed to satisfy mass appraisal principles.

The City of Regina applies the Market Valuation Standard to value non-regulated property.
According to clause 163(1) of the Act, the Standard is “achieved when the assessed value of the
property:

e is prepared using mass appraisals;

e is an estimate of the value of the estate in fee simple in the property;

o reflects typical market conditions for similar properties; and

e meets quality assurance standards established by order of the agency.”

There are three standard appraisal methods included in the definition of Mass Appraisal. The
property was appraised using the Income Approach to Value. This Approach is used to estimate
market value-based assessments by analyzing the future benefits of income from a property and
converting this income into an estimate of present value.

In the case of the property, the Assessor collected pertinent data to determine market rents and
market capitalization rates or Gross Income Multipliers (GIM) to estimate the assessed value of a

property.

The Assessor requested the rent rolls and income and expense statements for all commercial,
industrial and multi-family properties for the years 2013, 2014 and 2015. The final rent model
was developed from 2015 rent rolls and is consistent with the base date of January 1, 2015.

To develop the rent model, the Assessor collected and analyzed by Multiple Regression Analysis
(MRA) a total of 882 net and effective rents. The model predicts rents based on lease area size,
building and space classification, location, and effective building age.

The Assessor reviewed all transfers of titles for commercial properties from Information Services
Corporation. Once the sales are determined to be arms-length, the Assessor compares the income
and the sales prices to determine a capitalization rate. The economic capitalization rate analysis
involved 132 sales. These sales are listed on pages 28, 29, 30 and 31 of the Assessor's 10-day
submission.
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The Assessor capitalized the net income into an estimate of value by dividing the potential net
income by the capitalization rate.

The City of Regina has, since 2005, employed the Multiple Regression Analysis (MRA) to test all
assessment models including the Income Model that was used for appraisal of the subject
property. Multiple Regression Analysis is recognized by the International Association of
Assessing Officers.

In the case of the rental income, MRA is applied to determine what features add or detract from a
property's ability to generate income. When using sales analysis, MRA is used to determine a
capitalization rate and test other features such as size, rental area size, location, age, building
quality and site coverage.

The Assessor established a rent model by analyzing the reported net and effective net rents of 882
industrial properties. He then determined the common features (such as lease area size, building
and site classification, location and effective age of the building) that were impacting
capitalization rates. The result indicated a base capitalization rate of 6.862 and demonstrated a
downward capitalization rate as building size increases.

The capitalization rate is adjusted for building type and size. The Assessor noted in his written
materials that the Appellant does not question the adjustment for size as being site-specific
because, in the case of the subject property, were size adjustments removed, the capitalization
rate would decrease and the assessed value would increase.

The Appellant stated that the Assessor made an error in his calculations by misapplying a
capitalization rate adjustment for building size that resulted in a maximized or capped size of
50,000 square feet. He contended that in the Assessor's scenario properties of over 50,000 square
feet received no additional capitalization adjustment but remained at a constant of the base
capitalization rate (6.862) plus 1.76. The Appellant suggested that adjustments should continue
to increase beyond 50,000 square feet and, therefore, result in a lower assessment.

The Appellant suggested that the extension of the Assessor's graph to include warehouses that
were larger than 50,000 square feet would provide an upward curve in the graph and a new cap
cut-off or break point of 70,000 square feet that would improve the accuracy. He also deleted
two large sales of 87,760 square feet and 126,800 square feet from his analysis because they had
already received a rental size adjustment.

To determine a new break point, the Appellant introduced The Empirical Rule, also known as the
68-95-99.7 rule, and the Chebyshev's Theorem. By not including the aforementioned larger
properties, starting the analysis at more than 10,000 square feet, and applying the Chebyshev's
Theorem, the Appellant produced graphs that show continued upward trends in capitalization
rates beyond the Assessor's break point of 50,000 square feet. The Appellant's graph indicated a
new break point of 71,258 square feet for cap rate size adjustments. He also stated that a default
significance of +/- 5 per cent and a 95 per cent confidence level had been realized.

The Appellant introduced Andrei Volodin, Professor, Department of Mathematics and Statistics,

University of Regina, and asked the Board and the Assessor to accept him as an expert witness in
mathematics and statistics. He was qualified as such.
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During cross-examination Professor VVolodin admitted that he does not have any direct
knowledge or expertise in the practice of assessment or assessment law.

The Assessor stated in his written material that his methodology established an adjustment of
0.044 to the capitalization rate for every 1,000 square feet of building size above 10,000 square
feet. The adjustment is capped at 6.862 that is equal to 50,000 square feet. His statistical work
does not support the continuation of an adjustment after 50,000 square but states that a building
greater than 50,000 will still receive an adjustment of plus 1.76.

An Assessment to Sales Ratios (ASR) test by the Assessor for all sold properties indicates an
ASR of 1. This supports the accuracy of the assessment model used by the Assessor.

During the hearing, the Assessor introduced Robert Gloudemans as an expert witness. Mr.
Gloudemans is a former Senior Research Associate for the International Association of Assessing
Officers who specializes in mass appraisal model building and ratio studies. Mr. Gloudemans was
affirmed and testified by speaker phone. Mr. Gloudemans testified that it would not be
appropriate to apply the Chebyshev Theorem to assessment methodology.

The Assessor argued against the Appellant's suggestion to remove the two largest sales from the
analysis and that only sales using the base rent should be used in the cap rate adjustment by size.
He reminded the Board that an Assessor is required to use all sales to determine a capitalization
rate. He cannot make decisions to delete certain size properties in his analysis. He quoted a
Saskatchewan Municipal Board (SMB) decision Various c/o Altus Group v Regina (City) (SMB
2011-2022 et al).

Issue A) Did the Assessor err by applying a size adjustment to the base capitalization rate
for warehouses?

The Appellant states that by applying site specific cap rates the Assessor has moved away from
mass appraisal.

The Assessor arrived at the economic cap rate by dividing the predicted base date net operating
income (generated by the net rent model) by the adjusted sale prices for all qualified industrial
sales.

This capitalization rate analysis involved 132 sales.

After applying Multiple Regression Analysis for building type, effective age, site coverage and
total building size, the Assessor arrived at a base cap rate of 6.862. After reviewing notes from
the hearing and all written materials by the Assessor and the Appellant, the Board finds that the
Appellant has not proven that the Assessor erred with regard to the capitalization rate adjustments
for size and, therefore, Issue A must fail.

The Board agrees with the capitalization rate adjustment of 0.044 applied per 1,000 square feet of
the subject property.
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Issue B) Has Equity been achieved?

Subsection 165(5) of the Act states that: equity in non-regulated property assessment is achieved
by applying the market valuation standard so that the assessments bear a fair and just proportion
to the market value of similar properties as of a base date.

A number of Court and Saskatchewan Municipal Board decisions recognize that the Assessor,
because of his knowledge of the market and experience, has discretion in determining the
grouping of properties.

Statistical testing was completed and the grouping of properties for assessment purposes showed
that like properties were treated in a similar manner.

The Board finds that the Appellant has not proven that the Assessor erred in his application of
accepted principles of assessment. All warehouses properties were treated consistently and fairly
and equity was achieved.

Issue C) Has the Market Valuation Standard been achieved?

According to clause 163(1) of the Act, the Standard is “achieved when the assessed value of the
property:

e is prepared using mass appraisal

e isan estimate of the market value of the estate in fee simple in the property;

e reflects typical market conditions for similar properties; and

e meets quality assurance standards established by order of the agency.

The Act in Section 163(3) states: mass appraisal means the process of preparing assessment for a
group of properties as of the base date using standard appraisal methods, employing common data
and allowing for statistical testing.

The Assessor used standard appraisal methods in developing models and used data gathered from
property owners. The Assessor used multiple regression to test the models to ensure the grouping
of properties was appropriate.

The Assessor has achieved the Market Valuation Standard as detailed in clause 163(1) of the Act.
Therefore, this issue must fail.

In conclusion, the Board finds that the Appellant has not provided evidence of an error by the
Assessor in fact, in law or in the application of standard appraisal practice.
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DECISION
The Board dismisses this appeal with respect to the all issues.

The filing fee will be retained.

DATED AT REGINA, SASKATCHEWAN THIS _28 DAY OF___ August _, 2017.

CITY OF REGINA, BOARD OF REVISION

Farse foae

Joanne Moser, Panel Chair

| CONCUR:
Walter Antonio, Member
s O D
| CONCUR:

Linda Paidel, Member
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September 7, 2017

FS Altus Group Limited
C/O Archie Fieldgate
311 Albert Street
Regina, SK S4R 2N6

Re: Record of Decision — List of Appeals

Appeal #

2017-28073
2017-28074
2017-28076
2017-28077
2017-28078
2017-28079
2017-28080
2017-28081
2017-28082
2017-28083
2017-28084
2017-28085
2017-28086
2017-28087
2017-28088
2017-28089
2017-28090
2017-28091
2017-28092
2017-28093
2017-28094
2017-28095
2017-28096
2017-28097
2017-28098
2017-28099

Appeal Address

1111 MACKAY STREET
115 MCDONALD STREET
1155 PARK STREET
12202 EWING AVENUE
130 HODSMAN ROAD
1301 FLEURY STREET
135 HENDERSON DRIVE
1400 1ST AVENUE REGINA
1405 E PETTIGREW AVENUE
1450 PARK STREET

155 N LEONARD STREET
1575 ELLIOT STREET
1600 E ROSS AVENUE
1700 PARK STREET

1715 ELLIOTT STREET
1735 FRANCIS STREET
1802 E STOCK ROAD
1903 E TURVEY ROAD
1964 PARK STREET

202 SOLOMON DRIVE
2101 FLEMING ROAD
2107 E TURVEY ROAD
2120 15T AVENUE

2133 15T AVENUE

2201 1ST AVENUE

221 N WINNIPEG STREET

Appeal #

2017-28101
2017-28102
2017-28103
2017-28104
2017-28105
2017-28106
2017-28107
2017-28108
2017-28109
2017-28110
2017-28111
2017-28112
2017-28113
2017-28114
2017-28116
2017-28117
2017-28118
2017-28119
2017-28121
2017-28122
2017-28123
2017-28124
2017-28125
2017-28126
2017-28127
2017-28129

Appeal Address

250 HENDERSON DRIVE
310 HENDERSON DRIVE
316 E 1ST AVENUE

330 4TH AVENUE

363 MAXWELL CRESCENT
375 N LOGMAN CRESCENT
4000 E VICTORIA AVENUE
402 MCDONALD STREET
415 N LONGMAN CRESCENT
4150 E VICTORIA AVENUE
455 PARK STREET

4600 E VICTORIA AVENUE
4750 E VICTORIA AVENUE
515 1ST AVENUE

555 HENDERSON DRIVE
570 MCDONALD STREET
580 HENDERSON DRIVE
580 PARK STREET

603 PARK STREET

610 HENDERSON DRIVE
615 N WINNIPEG STREET
651 HENDERSON DRIVE
680 MCLEAOD STREET
745 PARK STREET

855 PARK STREET

921 BROAD STREET

Attached is the Record of Decision of the Board of Revision with respect to the
above-noted appeal.

Office of the City Clerk

Queen Elizabeth II Court | 2476 Victoria Avenue

PO Box 1790 | REGINA SK S4P 3C8
P: (306) 777-7262 | F: (306) 777-6809
Regina.ca
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Page 2

If you disagree with the decision of the Board of Revision, you have the right to appeal to
the Saskatchewan Municipal Board Assessment Appeals Committee. In order to file
such an appeal, you must complete the attached form and submit it within 30 days of
being served with the written notice of the decision.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact the Office of the City

Clerk at 306-777-7262, Monday to Friday, between 8 a.m. and 4:45 p.m.

Yours truly,

Vs

Jim Nicol, Secretary
Board of Revision

Attachment

cc:  City Assessor

Office of the City Clerk

Queen Elizabeth II Court | 2476 Victoria Avenue
PO Box 1790 | REGINA SK S4P 3C8

P: (306) 777-7262 | F: (306) 777-6809
Regina.ca
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' Notice of Appeal to the Regina Board of Revision

(DEADLINE FOR APPEALS IS March 8, 2017)

To the Secretary of the Board of Revision of the City of Regina, Saskatchewan:

Section 1:

[ request the: ___Simplified appeal process X _Regular appeal process (see reverse)

| appeal against the: (check beside those which apply)
X_Property valuation

___Property classification W’fg;ﬁ, pypsion
__ Exemption i
___Preparation or content of the Assessment Roll MAR 06 2017
___Preparation or content of the Notice of Assessment _ - 8
Qo - A8
Of the following property address: 221 N Winnipeg Street Account Number: 10018625

Assessed Parcel: Lot: , Blik: C: C: T, Plan: FA4603; 101221142; 84R22521

Section 2:
I make this appeal on the following grounds {nature of alleged error): (Attach extra sheets if necessary.)

See Attached Schedule “A”

Section 3:
In support of these grounds, | hereby state the foliowing material facts to be true and accurate: (Attach extra
sheets if necessary.)

See Attached Schedule “A”
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Secti” " 4:
i requi_. that the following change(s} be made to the assessment roil {if known}: {Attach extra sheets if necessary)
See Attached Schedule “A”

| have discussed my appeal with __See Attached (Assessor's name), of the
City Assessor's Office, on this date _ See Attached (month/day/year) and the following is a
summary of that discussion: (Include the outcome of the discussion and any details of the facts or issues agreed to by

the parties.)
See Attached

OR | have not discussed my appeal with the City Assessor's Office for the following reasons: {Provide reasons why no
discussion was held. Attach extra sheets if necessary.)

Section 5:
Appellant’s Information:

Appellant's Name: 3346286 Manitoba Limited c/o Staples Canada Inc.
E-mail Address: tom.colarusso@@staples.com

Mailing Address: 500 Staples Avenue City/Town:_ Framingham, MA ___ Postal Code: 1701

Home Phone #: N/A Business Phone #: 508-2563-8853 Cell #: N/A Fax #:

If the Appellant is not the owner, what interest does the Appellant have in the property?

Tenant

Agent’s Information (if applicable):

Agent’'s Name: Altus Group Limited E-mait Address: _archie.fieldgate@altusgroup.com
Mailing Address: 311 Albert Street City/Town:_Regina, SK Postal Code: S4R 2N6
Home Phone #:_N/A Business Phone #:_ (306) 359-0672 Cell #:_(306) 539-2368 Fax #: (306) 353-0674

Please list address for service for all appeal correspondence:

Mailing Address: 311 Albert Street City/Town:_Regina, SK Postal Code: _S4R 2N6

Dated this 6th day of March
Current Assessed Value under Appeal: _$10,919,900

Archie Fieldgate

{Appeliant's/Agent's name - please print) {Appellant's/Agent's sighatuire) Page 1460 of 196

*Whati is the difference between the reqular and simplified appeal process?
For regular appeals, any written material and photographs you provide in support of your appeal must be submitted to BOTH the
Secretary of the Board of Revision and the City Assessor at least 20 days before the date of your hearing.

If you qualify for a simplified appeal process and request it on the Notice of Appeal, you can provide any written material and
photographs in support of your appeal to the Board of Revision and City Assessor at your hearing. However, to avoid delays at your
hearing, you are encouraged to provide your material to BOTH the Secretary of the Board of Revision and the City Assessor at least
20 days before the date of your hearing. You are eligible for the simplified appeal process if your appeai is for:

+ a single family residential property or residential condominium; or

» any property that has a current assessed value assessment of 250,000 or less.

The written material you provide for either process should identify why you feel there is an error in your assessment.




Schedule A

SECTION 2:
The Assessment is too high and in excess of the market value based on the following grounds:

A. The subject assessment appears to have been developed in error through a misapplication
of the capitalization rate adjustment for building size. Moreover, the CAP rate size
threshold established by the Assessor is maximized or capped at 50,000 square feet
appears notwithstanding 65,000 square feet appears to be more appropriate.

B. The subject property is considered by the Assessor to be a non-regulated property
pursuant to subsection 163(f.4) of the Cities Act (the Act). As such, the Appellant is
alleging that the subject property has been over assessed as a result of the subject’s base
Cap Rate being adjusted in error within the Assessor’s assessed value calculation.
Subsequently, site coverage has been calculated while failing to account for areas and
features that directly limit the availability of extra or excess land.

C. Equity has not been achieved pursuant to subsection 165 (5) of the Act. This legislation
speaks to the application of the market valuation standard which in turn speaks to the use
of Mass Appraisal. As such, the Appellant is alleging that with the Assessor using site
specific Cap Rates, he has moved away from the concept of Mass Appraisal.

D. The Market Valuation Standard has not been achieved for the subject property. The

appellant is alleging here again that with the Assessor using site specific Cap Rates, he
has moved away from the concept of Mass Appraisal.

SECTION 3:
In support of these grounds, I hereby state the following material facts to be true and accurate:

A. Size Adjustment

e The Industrial model applies an adjustment for size in the sales capitalization rate
analysis and in the rent analysis.

e The CAP rate size threshold is maximized or capped at 50,000 square feet.

e The current maximum capitalization rate adjustment for size is 1.76. An adjustment of
0.044 per every 1,000 square feet above 10,000 square feet.
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o The rent model applies a size adjustment of -$2.53 per square foot greater than or equal
to 65,000 square feet.

e The sales with site coverage larger than 30% and net building areas greater than or equal
to 65,000 square feet less the -$2.53 psf adjustment have cap rates that continue to trend
upwards.




e There are no industrial sales between 50,462 square feet and 87,760 square feet with site
coverages greater than 30%.

B. Issue of Site Coverage

e The City of Regina has employed a new methodology whereby a special site specific
coverage adjustment is being applied to the Assessor’s Modeled Base Cap Rate with the
intention of reflecting extra and excess land that is on a site.

¢ In determining the percentage of site coverage, being a major factor within the site
specific coverage formula, the Assessor only considers the foot print of the buildings that
are located on site. Such areas of a site that are covered with canopy’s, fuel tanks(above
or below ground), business signage, garbage bins, docking zones, storage area, ctc. are
not being considered within the site specific coverage formula.

» Nor, what has not been considered within the site specific coverage formula is the fact
that there are City Bylaws that require a property owner to provide a certain level of
parking areas for both tenants and customers. This also means that a certain area of the
land would also be required for the movement of automobiles.

C. Equity

e Subsectionl65 (5) of the Act states that: equity in non-regulated property assessments is
achieved by applying the market valuation standard so that the assessments bear a fair
and just proportion to the market value of similar properties as of the applicable base
date.

D. Market Value Standard

o Subsection 163 (f.1) of the Act states: market valuation standard means the  standard
achieved when the assessed value of property is prepared using mass appraisal.

e Subsection 163 (f3) defines the term mass appraisal as: the process of preparing
assessments for a group of properties as of the base date using standard appraisal
methods, employing common data and allowing for statistical testing.

¢ In the Saskatchewan Court of Appeal case, Sasco Developments Ltd. vs. The City of
Moose Jaw, 2012 SKCA 24, the Court on pg. 5, made it clear of its understanding of
mass appraisal vs site specific values when it stated on pg. 5, the techniques associated
with mass appraisal are grounded in data common to a group of properties, whereas the
techniques associated with single property appraisal are grounded in the main in data
specific to a particular property.
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| Results of Pre-filing Discussion with the Assessor’s Office @ City Hall — 9: 30
AM_ March 3rd, 2017.

Assessor’s Present: Gerry Krismer & Aaron Homes - Binns.

Altus Agent’s Present: Archie Fieldgate and Ryan Simpson.

Issue: Site Coverage/ Moving Cap Rate

Discussion: Altus is questioning the validity of the moving Cap Rate that is
triggered by a site coverage formula.

The City holds the position that what they are doing is correct and claims to have
plenty of data to support the Mcthodology.

Result of Discussion: This issue would need to proceed through the Appeal
process.

Altus: Archie Fieldgate
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NOTICE OF AMENDED ASSESSMENT
2017 DUPLICATE

Account Numbe
10018625

3346286 MANITOBA LIMITED Property Address
C/0 SHINDICO REALTY INC, 551 N WINNIPEG STREET
200-1355 'TAYLOR AVENUE Assessed Parcel |

WINNIPEG MB R3M 3Y9 Blan: FA4603 Block C Lot:
Block: C Lot: ; Plan 8 R22521 BI
Property. Type
IMPROVED PARCEL |

“Plan: 101221142
k:Tlot

—
Q
o
o
L]
Q

Mail Date: Jan. 27, 2017
Appeal Deadline: Feb. 27, 2017

Assessed Person(s) 3346286 MANITOBA LIMITED

School Support Public 71 % Separate 29%
Previous Assessed Value 16,982,400
Current Assessed Value 10,919,900
Subclass (Provincial Percent) Taxable Assessment Exemptions
Commercial (100%) 10,919,900 Taxable(100%) From Jan-Dec

Total Taxable Assessment; 10,919,900

If you would like more information about your property characteristics, or to learn more about your Assessment Notice, please visit
Regina.ca or call 308-777-7000.

This notice was mailed on January 27, 2017. If you wish to appeal your assessment, your appeal should be made on the enclosefhge 1464 of 1961
form. Your appeal must be filed with the Secretary of the Board of Revision, no later than February 27, 2017. i

This Is not a tax bill. This statement shows the assessment on this property upon which taxes are to be levied. An official tax bill will
he forwarded to you or your agent in due course.

E.&0.E.

Assessment, Tax and Real Estate Department
Queen Elizabeth Il Counl | 2476 Victoria Avenue
PO Box 1780 | REGINA SK 84P 3C8

P: 308-777-7000] F: 306-777-6822

Regina.ca



34 pages removed as non-responsive to the request
Non Responsive
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